
 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 1 

 

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT     MEMBERS ABSENT 

Joseph Malcarne, Chairman        

Janine Arsenault 

John Calogero  

Norma Dolan 

William Gannon 

Paul Trusz        

Arthur Weiland       

         ALSO PRESENT 
        Bob Fennel, ZEO 

Arlene Campbell, Secretary     Michael Appolonia  

  

 

Chairman Malcarne opened the meeting at 7:38 pm. 

 

All applications were properly advertised and adjoining neighbors were notified via 

certified mail. 

 

VARIANCE APPLICATIONS: 

 

David Beneway - property is situated at 242 Schultz Hill Road, Tax Grid No. 6368-

00-166552. 

 

The applicant is seeking the following variances of the Town of Clinton Zoning 

Law, to wit: 

 

 Sec. 4.1 

  Swimming Pool 

a) Reduction of Rear Yard Setback from 75 feet to 17 feet. 

b) Reduction of Side Yard Setback from 50 feet to 33 feet. 

 

  Shed  

a) For a Front Yard Setback reduction from 100 ft. to 83 ft. 

b) For a Side Yard Setback reduction from 50 ft. to 16 ft. 

 

 Sec. 4.7 A-3 

  Shed 

  a) For an Accessory Structure which is in front of the principal 

dwelling when law requires accessory structures to not be in front 

of the principal dwelling.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 2 

 

The applicant was not in attendance for his proposition.  

 

The chairman noted that this application did not receive any determination from the 

Planning Board. Zoning Board of Appeals has to table this meeting for next month since 

this application has already been advertised.  

 

Mr. Trusz motioned to open the public hearing, seconded by Ms. Dolan. All Aye, motion 

carried, 6-0. 

 

The Beneway variance application is set to be back before the board next month. Public 

hearing remains open. 

 

INTERPRETATION  

 

Ernie Klopping - property owned by Ernest Klopping located at 377 Ruskey Lane, Tax 

Grid No. 6366-00-256522 for continuance. 

 

The applicant is challenging the determination of the Zoning Enforcement Officer 

that the “junk yard” on Mr. Klopping’s property should have been discontinued 

before October 13, 1984 under Sec. 362.2 of the Town of Clinton Zoning Law 

(1981) then in effect. The applicant asserts that the above determination was 

flawed and that the Klopping junk yard was exempt from the provisions of Sec. 

362.2. 

 

Mr. Habiague and Mr. Klopping were present for the application.  

 

Public hearing is still open.  

 

Mr. Trusz advised the panel to restate all pertinent statements or comments that were 

stated last meeting since 2 members of the board are now present for this application. It 

was noted that there was no quorum to vote on this application last time.  

 

Mr. Weiland recapped what had transpired last meeting. (Refer to ZBA Final Minutes – 

July 24, 2008). One of the concerns was about the definition of Junkyard in the 1981 

Zoning Regulations which states “that there will be no junkyard unless they are a part of 

principal industrial use.” He noted the meaning of industrial use which is commercial 

business activity. He indicated that the applicant pointed out that the use as a repair shop 

has been on this property for several decades. The Kloppings claimed that the materials 

that are on the property (junkyard) are in relation to the repair shop. The Zoning 

Enforcement Officer concluded that the junkyard should have been discontinued in 1984.  

Mr. Weiland noted that the ZEO accepted the repair shop as an Accessory Use to the 

property because of its grandfather use. Mr. Weiland also indicated that the Kloppings 

claimed that this property is comprised of 2 lots when the assessor’s record classifies this 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 3 

as one lot. He noted that if this property is consist of 2 lots, then 2 lots mean 2 principal 

uses.  

 

Mr. Habiague, Mr. Klopping’s attorney supplemented Mr. Weiland’s précis. He stated 

that the distinction between a junkyard as an accessory and as a principal use is that – 

junkyard as an accessory use does not sell materials or junk to the public.  Junkyard as a 

principal use sells material to the public. He noted that Mr. Klopping does not sell any 

materials to the public. He indicated all the submitted affidavits last meeting proved that 

no sales have been given to the public for decades.  The materials stored in the junkyard 

are being used to restore machinery. He added that the locations of the junkyard and the 

machine shop are both on the rear parcel of the property as evidenced by the recent 

surveyed map. These two uses are both on the same lot, one principal use and one 

accessory use. From their point of view, this junkyard is an accessory use to the machine 

shop and not a principal use. 

 

As the 1981 Zoning Ordinance definition of junkyard – A lot, land or structure, part 

thereof……..except as accessory to a principal industrial use of the lot, Mr. Habiague 

also indicated the relevant definition of industrial use (1991 Zoning Law) as the law 

defined the term industry – includes the entire range of economic activity and as applied 

to specifics, i.e. manufacturing, wholesale, retail, services, etc.  

 

Mr. Habiague indicated that the law states that industrial use includes activities in the 

Federal Government List of Standard Classifications. He submitted a copy of his research 

to the board about the List of Standard Classification.  He stated some items on the list 

such as general automotive repair shop, welding shop including automotive general repair 

shop, industrial trucks repair, tractor repair, fabricated structural metal and sheet metal.  

He noted that all these items are characterized in the Klopping’s operation.  From all 

points of view, all activities in Mr. Klopping’s machinery are therefore industrial 

classification.  

 

Regarding the question whether this lot is one or two parcels, Mr. Habiague stated that 

this is one parcel for tax purposes.  However, this parcel was originally conveyed in 1947 

as 2 separate lots. He noted that to date, this parcel is still conveyed as 2 lots per last 

conveyance 6 years ago.  

 

Mr. Trusz asked Mr. Habiague where he got his information about the List of Industrial 

Uses. Mr. Habiague responded that this is a Federal Government List that was bounced 

around between various agencies. By the time 1981 zoning was adopted, this list was at 

the hands of Office of Management and Budget and finally ended up at the Department 

of Labor.  He noted that these are the Standard Industrial Uses Classification. 

  

Ms. Dolan asked if the code on this list is the same code use for tax purposes. Mr. 

Habiague responded that he thinks it’s the same code that is being used for income tax 

purposes. The government uses this standard industrial classification list to keep tract of 

the economy for statistical purposes. 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 4 

 

Mr. Weiland indicated that the said code manual was used in the past by the board as 

dictionary since these codes were mentioned in the zoning book.  He noted that they use 

this manual to define the specific activity of a business.  

 

Mr. Fennel questioned the origin of this standard industrial classification.  He wanted to 

know if these were the same standard classifications that were originally used at the 

Office of Budget in 1957. Mr. Habiague responded positively.   

 

Mr. Fennel asked about the reliability of these classifications. Mr. Habiague responded 

that there is no other source of standard industrial classification. The government 

achieved 2 sets of standard industrial classification. It switched from one agency to 

another and ended up at the Department of Labor.  

 

As the claimant stated that this property is comprised of 2 parcels, Mr. Fennel wanted to 

know whether these 2 parcels are under one Deed with 2 parcels or 2 deeds with 2 

parcels. Mr. Habiague replied that this property is under one deed with 2 parcels.  

 

Mr. Fennel indicated that this property is not considered separate lots under Sec. 4.3 B of 

the 1991 Zoning Law. As the law states “Any lands that may be described separately, 

but are part of a single deed or which have not been duly approved as separate building 

lots by the Planning Board and filed as separate lots in the office of the Dutchess County 

Clerk, whether or not they are separate lots for property tax purposes, require subdivision 

under the provisions of this law.”  

 

Mr. Habiague stated that this property was conveyed as 2 parcels prior to 1991 zoning 

law. He added that the purpose of the language of this law is to address the capability that 

someone is able to sell this property separately. Mr. Fennel stated that this is also the 

purpose of the previous law.  

 

Mr. Fennel wanted to know the relevance of this property as 2 lots. Mr. Habiague 

responded that one lot means 1 principal use and 1 accessory use. He noted that the 

machine shop is the accessory use to the residence.  

 

The ZEO disagreed. The shop is certainly not a principal use. He stated that the shop is 

more of a nonconforming accessory use to the house. He noted that the law describes this 

parcel as a single lot. 

 

The chairman asked Mr. Weiland about the deed that he requested from the applicant. 

Mr. Weiland responded that he requested deed information prior to the zoning about this 

property from the applicant. He indicated that the deed that was submitted to him shows 

all improvements and describes this property as 2 parcels.  

 

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 5 

Mr. Fennel stated that the general purpose for combining two parcels into one deed is to 

avoid taxes.  

 

Mr. Weiland pointed out that one building was built in 1958 according to the property 

card.  This building was built straddling on the property lines. He noted that it appears 

that both prescribed lots are treated as one since the building was built on both lots.  

 

The ZEO questioned the rationality of this concept. He indicated that there are number of 

properties from the 19
th

 century with one deed and was prescribed as 6 to 10 lots. He 

asked Mr. Habiague, if let’s say anybody has 6 or 10 parcels prescribed in one deed, can 

the property owner uses each one of these parcels as principal dwelling? Mr. Habiague 

responded that it depends if the principal use is grandfathered. He added that Sec. 4.3 B is 

designed for subdivision purposes.  

 

Chairman Malcarne asked the ZEO if one lot can have more than one principal use. The 

ZEO stated that the barn is a principal use and the house on this parcel is also a principal 

use.  He replied that there can be 2 principal uses in this situation.  

 

Mr. Weiland read Sec. 4.4 A paragraph 2 of the 1991 zoning law. “Minimum Lot Area 

per Dwelling unit on Establishment – If two or more principal residential structures or if 

a single structure containing two or more dwelling units are located or proposed to be 

located on the same lot, except for residential conversion authorized under this law by 

special permit, the minimum lot area per dwelling unit requirement must be complied 

with, and all other requirements of the law and other applicable laws…must be strictly 

met.” Mr. Weiland commented that there are few conditions on the code where it 

precedes more than one principal use.  

 

Mr. Fennel remarked that this is like a nonconforming home occupation in the backyard. 

The house is the principal use and the shop is the accessory use.  

 

Mr. Habiague indicated that there are provisions in 1981 zoning law that requires special 

attention to those who have livelihood vested in the nonconforming use. However, it is 

inappropriate for the provisions of the code to construe this restrictively in a way that 

deprive Mr. Klopping from subdividing the property.  

 

Mr. Habiague and the ZEO had lengthy discussion about this matter.  

 

Mr. Habiague noted that there is a provision in the code that allowed for expansion. He 

added that this is subject to the criteria of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

 

Mr. Fennel stated that the discussion should focus on whether this is a junkyard or 

nonconforming use. Mr. Habiague commented that the panel should talk about the intent 

also. 

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 6 

 

The chairman opened the questions to the public.  

 

Mr. Almas, the Jacobys’ attorney (Mr. Klopping’s adjoining neighbor) expressed his 

comments. He stated that the issue about whether this property is 2 or 1 lot is irrelevant. 

He indicated that you can have one principal use and one accessory use if you have one 

lot.  The house is the principal use and the repair shop is the accessory use. However, a 

junkyard is a junkyard since you cannot have accessory use to the accessory use. It 

doesn’t rely on whether the junkyard is an accessory use to the industrial use. He pointed 

out that the current and the previous law both defined this as one parcel.  Mr. Almas also 

stated that per Planning Board Meeting dated January 15, 2008, where a question was 

raised about this property having 2 lots, he noted that the applicant indicated that the 2 

parcels are consolidated into 1 lot.  These parcels are now treated as one lot. He added 

that the tax assessor’s record also shows one parcel.   

 

Mr. Almas commented about the discussion under the new law (Sec. 4.3 B).  Even 

though the property was subdivided and is now treated as 2 lots, he stated that this still 

doesn’t change the fact that in 1984, the junkyard use is supposed to be a sunset. He 

stated that this is not pre-existing, nonconforming use. The junkyard became illegal in 

1984. He added that this is illegal since there was no special use permit granted.  

 

Mr. Fennel noted that the nonconforming use of this property refers to the repair shop and 

not to the junkyard. Mr. Almas agreed.  He indicated that there is a variance application 

for a grandfathered, nonconforming use. He stated that this is not a grandfathered. This is 

illegal, non grandfathered use. He asked the board to look into this application to make 

sure that this is being treated as a variance application and not as an extension of illegal 

use.   

 

Mr. Weiland commented that there are several uses on the property.  One is the 

residential, second is the repair shop and the third one is the junkyard. He noted that Mr. 

Almas can contend the junkyard as an illegal use.  The repair shop, however, is a 

grandfathered, nonconforming use. Mr. Almas agreed.  

 

Mr. Almas made more comments regarding the issue about the number of lots. If the 

board determines that this property consists of 2 lots (front and back lot), Mr. Almas 

assumes that the board and the Kloppings will only use the square footage of the structure 

in the back lot as primary square footage in determining the expansion of use. He stated 

that if these are 2 lots, the square footage of the house and the shed on the other lot 

should not be counted.  Adding the square footage of all the buildings on this property 

will sum up to more than 3,200 square feet. If right now the existing repair shop is 300 

square feet and the proposal is 10 times the existing square footage of the repair shop, 

how much bigger will this structure going to be? He indicated that if the board 

determines that these are 2 lots then he hopes to see it 2 lots throughout the entire 

application.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 7 

.  

 

 

Mr. Almas questioned about the intensive zoning decrease in the nonconformity use of 

this property. He commented about the economic activity of Mr. Klopping.  He indicated 

that this was a motorcycle business in 1972.  He had never seen any record about Mr. 

Klopping’s business becoming a Land Rover Restoration business. He challenged the 

Kloppings to show any record that this was a Land Rover Restoration business in 1984. 

Mr. Almas submitted aerial photos of the property decades ago.  He stated that these 

photos are showing one parcel and limited use of the property. 

 

Mr. Habiague remarked that the discussion was going way beyond the topic. This is an 

interpretation of the ZEO’s ruling that there is a nonconforming use in the repair shop 

and whether the junkyard is an accessory use to the machine shop. 

 

Mr. Klopping’s attorney wanted to address 2 issues. First is whether this is one or 2 lots. 

Second is whether the junkyard is an accessory use to the machine shop or not. 

 

Mr. Habiague indicated that Mr. Fennel asked him to find in the zoning ordinance the 

intent of their discussion.  He stated that the intent was found on page 103 of the green 

book, Sec. 6.1 paragraph 2.  It states that “The intent of this law is to limit, by not 

increasing, nonconforming uses and to eliminate such uses as speedily as possible, but at 

the same time to alleviate economic hardship to an existing nonconforming use by 

allowing it to continue at its existing level of intensity, in accordance with all other 

provisions of applicable laws and regulations.” 

 

Mr. Habiague discussed the level of intensity of the shop. When the first zoning law 

came in, there were 1 & ½ persons working in the repair shop. Years gone by and the 

shop had 2 workers, Mr. Klopping and his father. He noted that the amount of work done 

can be measured by the number of workers. All the discussions about the inflation, bills, 

etc. are irrelevant. Under the intent provision, the board has to take into consideration the 

hardship incurred which is found in the definition or the legal use of the junkyard. It 

becomes a problem if the junkyard cannot exist.  He stated that the cars for restoration are 

normally unlicensed when brought up to the shop.  

 

Regarding the question whether this is one lot or 2 lots, Mr. Habiague commented on 

Sec. 4.3 B of the 1991 zoning law.   It was noted that Mr. Fennel stated that Mr. 

Klopping’s property is considered one parcel under this article.  Mr. Habiague asked Mr. 

Fennel “what are the provisions of this law that states that subdivision is required?” 

 

Once again the ZEO and Mr. Klopping’s attorney had lengthy discussion about the issue. 

Mr. Habiague stated that the junkyard is an accessory to the industrial use and therefore 

exempted from the sunset provision. Mr. Fennel indicated that this is still a junkyard.  

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 8 

 

 

Mr. Fennel noted that the question whether this is one or 2 lots is extraneous. He added 

that he stands with his determination.  This is a junkyard and must go away per zoning 

ordinance.  

 

Mr. Habiague remarked that this was accepted in 1981. He indicated the definition of 

junkyard in the 1981 zoning ordinance.  Sec. 510 page 88 of 1981 zoning law states that 

“A lot, land or structure, or part thereof over 200 square feet in area, used primarily for 

collecting the storage and/or sale of waste paper, rags, scrap metal, or discarded material, 

or for collecting, dismantling, storage and salvaging of machinery or vehicles not in 

running condition and for the sale of parts thereof, except as accessory to a principal 

industrial use of the lot. “ Mr. Habiague noted that the definition clearly states that except 

as accessory to a principal industrial use of the lot.  

 

Mr. Fennel noted that he still stands with his determination and let the board decides on 

this matter.  

 

Mr. Klopping’s lawyer asked the board to do further review of this case especially with 

the definition of junkyard as stated in the 1981 zoning law. He stated that these are 

separate lots that were conveyed into 1 deed. They were consolidated into 1 lot for tax 

purposes. He indicated that there was no intention of subdividing these lots or selling it 

individually.  

 

Mr. Weiland expressed his thoughts about this case. He stated that these lots were not 

transferred into one deed recently. The town attorney and Planning Board considered this 

as one lot.  There was a building that was built on the surveyed line between two separate 

spread parcels. 

 

Mr. Klopping noted that the building (chicken house) that was built on surveyed line was 

an existing building. He indicated that any buildings beyond that took place on the other 

part of the property. The chicken shed was on the original property where the house is 

located. He noted that the added on building took place on the other side of the property. 

He stated that the shop is not on this property. The repair shop and the machine shop are 

on the same lot with the junkyard. The property is divided by stone walls.  

 

With respect to the determination of the Planning Board (per Planning Board meeting 

dated January 15, 2008), Mr. Klopping’s lawyer remarked that anybody will look at this 

as one lot if you are not focusing on the issue as in the case now. There are 2 separate 

conveyances of the original deed from legal point of view. These 2 lots were stipulated in 

one deed.  

 

 

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 9 

 

Mr. Weiland commented that if, let’s say the board determines that this property consists 

of 2 lots (meaning junkyard as an accessory to the industrial use), then the applicant 

needs to recalculate the footprint for any future activity. He noted that the applicant needs 

to get a variance to move their activities from one part of the property to another 

property.  

 

Mr. Habiague explained to the board again why this junkyard should not be discontinued. 

This is pre-existing, legal, nonconforming use. This is a significant value for Mr. 

Klopping. He has a vested interest in a nonconforming use (real estate).  Taking this 

away from Mr. Klopping is significant. Mr. Habiague also stated that this is a serious step 

that needs to be taken into consideration. The board needs to look at the rationality of this 

ordinance. Mr. Habiague stated that different people have different interpretation of the 

ordinance. He believes that their interpretation is the closest to the intent of the law. He 

noted that they are prepared to go all the way with this case. He pleaded to the board to 

review this carefully for a lawful decision.   

 

Mr. Gannon asked Mr. Habiague if the building is enclosed. The applicant responded this 

is what they are trying to do --to construct an enclosed structure. Mr. Gannon noted the 

definition of junkyard, page 160 of 1991 zoning book. Junkyard – a lot, land or structure, 

or part thereof other than a completely enclosed building, over 200 square feet in area 

used for or occupied by the collection, storage ……..other than in a fully enclosed 

building of machinery or vehicles not in operating condition and/or for the sale of their 

parts. He noted that according to this law, this is not a junkyard.  

 

Mr. Almas commented about the issue.  He stated that the proposed site plan is for an 

enclosed building to bring stuff inside with a fence around the building. The vehicles that 

are being assembled are inside the building and the recent cars that just came in will be 

parked in the fenced area.  

 

The chairman reminded Mr. Almas that the board is doing an interpretation of the ZEO’s 

determination. He understands the concern about the junkyard, neighborhood, economic 

activity, etc. He asked Mr. Almas to focus on the application that is on hand.  

 

Mr. Weiland indicated the list of activities that had occurred on the property which are 

valuable to the community per Mr. Habiague.  He questioned the principal use of the 

repair shop. If this is the principal use of the repair shop and thus includes all the list of 

activities that were stated earlier, then the amount of activity storage that can be brought 

on this property is massive.    

 

 

 

 

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 10 

 

 

 

Ms. Dolan asked if the 1981 zoning law was incorporated with the 1991 zoning 

ordinance or was it superseded when the law was implemented in 1991.  Mr. Fennel 

responded that it superseded. Ms. Dolan asked the ZEO on how a nonconforming use was 

generally enforced when the zoning law was implemented. Is it a complaint process that 

eliminates the use of nonconforming use?  

 

Mr. Fennel replied that the nonconforming use doesn’t get eliminated as long as it is 

continuous. It cannot be established. The point is – this is a home occupation.  He added 

that if the barn gets built, it is still going to be a nonconforming accessory use on this 

property. Under the zoning law, home occupation can only occur in the house.  

 

Mr. Trusz asked Mr. Weiland about his earlier comments pertaining to the Federal 

Department of Labor Industrial Uses. He wanted to know if he was referring to the 

statement in the 1981 zoning. He stated that industrial use only refers to the 1981 zoning. 

Industrial use now in the Town of Clinton residential is not allowed.  

 

Mr. Weiland responded negative.  He indicated that the manual from the federal 

government has the title of industrial use but the manual is about business activity. He 

stated that the Town of Clinton’s regulations can be sometimes ambiguous that it can go 

to the federal manual. It is then how the town defines these definitions.  

 

Mr. Trusz believed that the Kloppings mentioned all the business activities that have 

gone through the property was based on the definition of the junkyard use in the 1981 

zoning law stating except as accessory to a principal industrial use of the lot.  

 

Chairman Malcarne asked for more comments from the panel.  

 

Mr. Fennel stated that the overall law found junkyards obnoxious and should be 

eliminated.  When the law eliminated the use of the junkyard, people lost their livelihood 

after 3 years. Some people contested this to the court and it was held up. The law doesn’t 

intend to protect everybody. In the case of Mr. Klopping, it can deprive his livelihood.  

 

Mr. Habiague commented that this is true provided that it is consistent with the town law. 

The board and the ZEO agreed. Mr. Habiague stated that it depends on the definition of a 

junkyard.  Every farm has a junkyard now. Mr. Fennel remarked there is a distinction 

here since farms are community use. They are in fact accessory use to the principal 

dwelling which is the farm. Ms. Dolan indicated that farmers are protected by Ag & 

Markets’ law.  

 

 

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 11 

 

 

Once again the panel had an extensive discussion whether this property consists of 2 or 1 

lot.  Mr. Fennel stated that this is still one lot with one primary use and one accessory 

use. 

 

Mr. Habiague suggested that in order to unravel this issue, the board has to do a working 

session. If everybody does some homework, participates and contributes input for the 

discussion, then the board can come up with a better resolution. Research is necessary to 

understand both laws on where the ordinances are coming from and how they crate 

together.  

 

Mr. Malcarne solicited Mr. Gannon’s thoughts that he attempted to share earlier.  

 

Mr. Gannon asked Mr. Klopping about the original owner of these parcels. He wanted to 

know if these 2 lots were originally owned by his grandparents. He wondered if there was 

a mistake done when the survey was made on these lots. Mr. Klopping replied that his 

parents bought this property when he was a kid.  He stated that the 2
nd

 lot was acquired 

when he was 4 years old shortly after the 1
st
 lot was bought.  

 

Mr. Almas commented about Mr. Fennel’s statement earlier regarding the junkyard. He 

indicated that the zoning was explicit about getting rid of the obnoxious part of the 

property which is the junkyard. He stated that the Jacobys are not sympathetic to Mr. 

Klopping. The law gave them 3 years to work this out and to find another piece of 

property.  He emphasized that 3 years were plenty of time. 

 

With regards to home occupation, Mr. Almas indicated that Mr. Klopping does not live 

on the property. He stated that you need to live on the property to have a home 

occupation. This is a rental property.  

 

Lastly, the Jacoby’s lawyer expressed his profound concern about the above mentioned 

working session. He stated that the neighbors should be involved or get invited if there is 

going to be any informal discussion or workshop. He pleaded for the board to put out 

some notice regarding this session. 

 

Ms. Dolan asked the ZEO about the 3 year time period from the 1981 zoning. How will 

the town residents know that they have 3 years grace period? Mr. Fennel responded that 

he doesn’t think that the neighbors were notified about this.  He thinks that the neighbors 

have to find this out.  

 

Mr. Habiague made a follow up about this comment. He stated that if residents weren’t 

informed about this for 3 years and the town was aware of it, how come the law didn’t 

enforce this for 20 years?  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 12 

Ms. Dolan noted that to her knowledge, there was no complaint received for this issue for 

20 years. Mr. Habiague agreed. This is ignorance of the law. The fact is – for 20 long 

years, no one told Mr. Klopping that he has to shut down his junkyard. Perhaps this 

provision was interpreted the way they do. Nobody thought that this accessory use is 

subject to this provision ‘till recently.  

  

Mr. Calogero wanted to know the legality of this issue. He asked the lawyers to explain 

the distinction between a contractor who keeps 2 dump trucks off the back of his property 

and picks hydraulic cylinder once in a while for his own use (not for sale) and with Mr. 

Klopping’s case who picks cars and not sell to the public.  

 

Mr. Weiland responded that it is in the zoning law. He stated that you’re allowed one 

vehicle unlicensed but the 2
nd

 unlicensed vehicle is illegal. Mr. Calogero noted that he 

perfectly understand this law.  Once you get to 2nd vehicle, it becomes a problem that’s 

why he cited 2 dump trucks. Mr. Weiland also indicated that a pile of stuff which is less 

than 10 square feet is not a pile of junk. He stated that if Mr. Klopping keeps a pile of 

stuff less than 10 square feet then this is a not a pile of junk. 

 

The chairman wanted to hear the answers from Mr. Calogero’s question.  

 

Mr. Habiague responded to the question. First, he asked when the 2 trucks landed on the 

property. Mr. Calogero replied that these are 1932 trucks and had been sitting there 

forever. Mr. Habiague stated that since he is a contractor, his business is an industry. 

Therefore, this is a junkyard which is an accessory to the industry that takes place as a 

principal use. Mr. Weiland asked if there is a house on the property. Mr. Calogero 

responded that this contractor can either live on this property or has a tenant on it.  He 

noted that this contractor owns the property. 

 

Mr. Weiland asked Mr. Calogero “what’s the principal use of the property?’ Mr. 

Habiague agreed. This is the appropriate question here. He asked if there is a shop on the 

property.  Mr. Calogero replied that there is a house on the property.  The contractor has 

his trucks and equipments out there. Mr. Habiague commented that Mr. Calogero cited a 

very hard question. 

 

Mr. Fennel expressed his comment.  He stated that this is a violation of the law.  There 

should only be one principal use on the property.   

 

Mr. Calogero pointed out where his query is heading. If the board determines that this is a 

junkyard even though nothing is sold to the public, will this determination be the same to 

other town residents who have things stored on their property that are considered gold to 

other people and obnoxious to others? 

 

Mr. Weiland responded that this determination was made in Clinton Corners where in 

there was a collection of architectural salvage and sculpture. He noted that it was 

determined that a collection of architectural salvage and sculpture is a junkyard.  



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 13 

 

 

 

Mr. Almas responded to Mr. Calogero’s question. He stated that Mr. Calogero missed the 

3
rd

 scenario in comparing the contractor’s case with Mr. Klopping’s junkyard. He 

commented that you don’t walk in and buy a carburetor from Mr. Klopping.  You bring 

your car in. Mr. Klopping takes the carburetor off to something, puts it in your car then 

sells the carburetor in the repair. You walked out with the fixed gear. He noted that Mr. 

Klopping keeps the Land Rovers around in order to fix his own cars. He commented that 

Mr. Calogero created 2 different instances with 2 distinctions but there is a third 

distinction.  

 

Mr. Fennel gave his view about this issue. He stated that the definition of junkyard 

doesn’t mean that you have to sell the stuff in the junkyard. Mr. Calogero noted that the 

definition states “storage and/or sale of waste materials”.  

 

The chairman called for a 5 minute recess after a very long discussion.  

 

Mr. Malcarne opened the questions to the public after a short recess.  

 

Mr. Rasnick, a Stanford resident commented on Mr. Almas’s statement about the 3 year 

sunset of the 1981 zoning that the town is willing to put people out of business without a 

notice. He stated that the intention of the 1981 ordinance (definition of junkyard) is to 

exclude Mr. Klopping.  

 

Ms. Jacoby, an adjoining neighbor indicated that they are not referring to Land Rover 

cars. She was tetchy about the noise/disturbance at 3:00 in the morning.  

 

Tom Cummings, 148 Hollow Road stated that the size of 3,200 square feet building is not 

ten times the size of the existing shop. This is a reasonable size and a reasonable 

expansion. With regards to the 3 years sunset rule, he indicated that it is not reasonable to 

shut down a business after 28 years. He added that 5 years is reasonable but to wait 28 

years is totally unjustifiable. Mr. Cummings noted that these are 2 lots owned by 2 

different people at one point. Mr. Klopping’s parents owned 1 lot and the previous owner 

owned the other lot. When the Kloppings bought the 2
nd

 lot, they didn’t bother going to 

the Planning Board to combine these lots. He stated that these are still considered 2 lots 

since they’ve never been combined into one lot.   

 

Hearing no more comments from the public, Mr. Trusz motioned to close the public 

hearing. Seconded by Mr. Gannon. Discussion. All aye, motion carried, 6-0. 

 

Richard Morse, a town resident missed the motion to close the pubic hearing. He stated 

that there are still numerous town residents who were not around to express their opinion. 

He pleaded for the board to leave the public hearing open.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 14 

The chairman expressed his sympathy to the public.  Unfortunately, public hearing was 

closed.  The board has 60 days to act on this case.  

 

The board had discussions whether a workshop is necessary. 

 

Mr. Trusz remarked that workshop is probably not necessary.  The panel has very good 

discussions about this case. There are still items that need to be addressed but this will be 

a board discussion. He noted that the board is more qualified to make the decision. 

 

The chairman thinks that workshop is probably needed. 

 

Mr. Trusz expressed his thoughts about this case. He stated that there are 2 critical issues 

on this application. First is about the number of lots. He stated that the zoning law states 

that if there are two building lots within one parcel then this parcel is considered one 

parcel with one principal use. In other words, if a parcel has 2 separate deeded lots within 

a parcel, this is considered one parcel even though there are 2 deeded lots on the same 

parcel.  

 

Mr. Weiland commented that there is a difference between building lots and deeded lots. 

He stated that this parcel has 2 descriptions of property both of which came to the 

property as separate deed. Mr. Trusz agreed. This is listed as one parcel by the assessor’s 

office.  In his opinion, this parcel has one principal use.  Mr. Weiland hereby agreed. 

 

Second critical issue that Mr. Trusz pointed out was about the definition of the junkyard 

in the 1981 zoning law. As the law states Junkyard - ……..except an accessory to the 

principal industrial use of the lot. He complemented the Kloppings for gathering an 

interesting research about Department of Labor classifying an industrial use. In this 

situation, he indicated that the junkyard is an accessory to an industrial use. He believed 

that based on the 1981 zoning law, the principal use of the parcel was the residence and 

behind the residence was the shop and the junkyard. If the principal use is the residence 

and the shop is the accessory use, what is a junkyard?  

 

Mr. Calogero stated that a question still exists as to the number of lots on this property. 

He doesn’t think that this issue is relevant with the decision of the board since there are 2 

separate deeds as noted.  

 

Mr. Weiland noted that there are 2 separate deeds at this point but there is only 1 deed 

transferring of the property from Alice Klopping to Ernie Klopping.  

 

Mr. Calogero asked the board if these lots have to be conveyed separately. Mr. Weiland 

replied negative. He noted that the deed just happened to describe the 2 parcels and 

conveyed all the material improvements, trees, etc. on the property.  

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 15 

Mr. Calogero asked if the conveyance of the parcels makes this legally one lot. Mr. 

Habiague responded negative.  Mr. Weiland replied that it depends on how the board 

interprets the law.  

  

Mr. Weiland cited an instance about his neighbor who has 3 deeds on his parcel. These 

deeds are described from transition to transition. He agreed that these are buildable lots.  

He noted that the property owner needs to go to the Planning Board for a lot line change 

in order to change the boundary line.  

 

Mr. Fennel noted that some property owners have 16 deeds in one parcel. When the 

zoning was adopted, he indicated that these deeds were treated as one parcel and not as 

16 parcels.  

 

Mr. Gannon asked what year when they were deeded separately. Mr. Habiague responded 

that these parcels were conveyed separately in 1947 in one deed up to present time. Mr. 

Habiague noted that there is no way that these parcels were combined into one parcel 

unless there was a consolidation process. He indicated that the assessor’s office doesn’t 

have the power to merge these parcels into one.  

 

The board had a comprehensive discussion. Mr. Weiland quoted what Mr. Habiague 

stated about the property rights of these 2 parcels. The law describes that the property 

rights of these 2 separate parcels do not take away the existence of the two parcels. If 

there is a case law about this, Mr. Weiland noted that the board needs to look for this case 

law.  He also suggested for the town lawyer to look for a case law about a parcel property 

with more than one lot supporting more than one use.  

 

The chairman asked Mr. Habiague and Mr. Almas to also research the abovementioned 

case laws.  

 

Mr. Trusz wanted to see the case law 2 weeks before the meeting so that the town lawyer 

and the board can review it.  

 

After a very long discussion, the board decided to adjourn. The applicant is scheduled to 

come back before the board next month (October 23, 2008 meeting). Because of the 60 

days law, the board must give a ruling next meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 TOWN OF CLINTON 

  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  

FINAL MINUTES 

  September 25, 2008                                                    

 16 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

  

1. Mr. Trusz motioned to accept August 27, 2007 minutes as amended.  Seconded by 

Mr. Malcarne, All Aye, Motion carried, 4-0.  

 

2. Mr. Weiland moved to accept the amended minutes of September 27, 2007.  

Seconded by Mr. Malcarne, All Aye, Motion carried, 4-0. 

 

3. Mr. Trusz motioned to accept the minutes of August 28, 2008 as amended.  

Seconded by Ms. Dolan, All Aye, Motion carried, 5-0. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:45 pm. The next Zoning Board of Appeals meeting is 

scheduled on October 23, 2008 at 7:30 pm. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Arlene A. Campbell, Clerk 

Planning & Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

cc:  Barbara Joyce, Town Clerk 


